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Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. $$ 1332(a), 1332(d)(2), 1441(a), and 1453(b),

Defendant Alta-Dena Certified Dairy, LLC ("Alta-Dena") hereby gives notice of

the removal of the above-entitled action from the Superior Court of the State of

California, County of Los Angeles, Case No. BC-509036, to the United States

District Court, Central District of California, Western Division.

For this Notice of Removal, Alta-Dena pleads as follows:

l. There is jurisdiction over this removed action pursuant fo 28 U.S.C. $

f4al@) because the matter in controversy exceeds $75,000, exclusive of interest

and costs, and is between citizens of different states, and therefore originally could

have been filed in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. $ 1332(a). In addition, there is

jurisdiction pursuant to the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005 ("CAFA"), because

this is a class action in which the amount in controversy exceeds $5,000,000 and at

least one member of the class is a citizen of a State different from any defendant.

28 U.S.C. $$ 1332(dX2), 14s3(b).

2. On May 15,2013, Juan Perez ("Plaintiffl') commenced this action in

the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles, entitled

Juan Perez v. Alta Dena Certified Dairy, LLC, as Case Number 8C509036. A true

and correct copy of the original complaint, summons, and civil cover sheet is

submitted herewith as Exhibit 1 to the Declaration of Kathryn Hoek ("Hoek

Decl.").

3. Because this action was filed and is pending in the Superior Court of

the State of California for the County of Los Angeles, removal of this action to this

District Court is proper under 28 U.S.C. $ 1a46(a).

4, This Notice of Removal is timely because it is being filed within thirty

days of Plaintiffs service of his Complaint on Alta-Dena Certified Dairy, LLC on

May 17,2013. 28 U.S.C. $ 1446(b).

5. The summons, civil case cover sheet, complaint, proof of service of

summons, and Initial Status Conference Order constitute all process, pleadings and

I2722407v11013775
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orders that have been filed in this action. True and correct copies of these

documents, along with a copy of the docket, are submitted herewith as Exhibits 1-2

to the Hoek Declaration.

6. Written notice of the filing of this Notice of Removal will be promptly

served upon Plaintiff. A true and correct copy of this Notice of Removal is being

filed with the Clerk of the Superior Court of California for the County of Los

Angeles as soon as practicable.

I. SUMMARY OF COMPLAINT

7. Plaintiff Juan Perez alleges that he was employed by Alta-Dena as a

truck driver since 2005. (Compl. fl 7) Plaintiff alleges that Alta-Dena "failed to

authorize andlor permit Mr. Perez (and other similarly situated drivers) with legally

compliant meal andlor rest breaks, which further resulted in other California Labor

Code violationsl.l" (1d.,)

8. In addition to his individual claims, Plaintiff brings claims on behalf of

a putative class of "[a]11 persons who were employed by Defendant as a 'Driver' for

as long as the statutory period will allow (the 'putative class')." (1d. T 8)

9. Plaintiff alleges that "Defendant had a uniform policy and practice of

restricting all drivers' [sic] during their alleged meal periods to remain within a

one-mile (or half-mile) radius of their designated routes. Thus, Defendant did not

allow Plaintiff or any putative class member duty free meal period(s) as required by

the California Labor Code and the applicable Industrial Welfare Commission Wage

Orders." (Id. n A) Plaintiff also allegqs that Defendant's meal and rest break

policy failed "to comply with meal and rest break timing requirements." (Id.)

Plaintiff alleges that "Defendant had a corporate policy andlor practice that did not

permit 'drivers' (such as Plaintiff) from taking a meal andlor rest break until a

shipment was completed (i.e., driven from Defendant's place of business to another

local California delivery destination)," and that "Defendant would neither avthorize

nor perrnit a meal andlor rest break in between routes because that would delay

22722407v11013775
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delivery." (Id.) Plaintiff alleges that, as a result, "from at least 2005, Plaintiff and

the putative class members were not authorized or permitted to take a meal andlor

rest break, and - in turn - received less than what was due to them on the next pay

check (and/or at the termination of employment)." (Id.) Plaintiff alleges that he "is

informed and believes these policies andlor practices continued from at least 2005

to December 3I,2010, . . . [and] applied to all of Defendant's drivers in Southern

California." (Id,) Plaintiff further alleges that "beginning in at least 2005 to at least

December 31,2010, Defendant instituted a practice of automatically deducting 30

minutes of work time and, thus, 30 minutes of pay each day from each driver

regardless of whether or not the driver actually took a duty free meal period if the

driver worked beyond his minimum shift of eight or ten hours." (Id.1l 15)

10. Plaintiff brings claims on behalf of himself and the putative class for

(1) failure to provide rest periods and meal periods, in violation of Cal. Labor Code

5ç 226.7 and 5I2; (2) failure to pay statutory minimum wage, straight time, and

overtime and "ofÊthe-clock work", in violation of Cal. Labor Code $$ 510, 511,

1182.12, and 1194, and the applicable IV/C Order; (3) failure to pay all wages

earned, in violation of Cal. Labor Code $$ 201-0a; @) "clawing back" earned

wages or making unauthorized deductions from employees' compensation, in

violation of Cal. Labor Code $$ 221-224; (5) failure to provide accurate itemized

wage statements, in violation of Cal. Labor Code S 226; and (6) unfair business

practices, in violation of Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code $$ 17200, et seq. (1d.[n20-52)

11. In addition, Plaintiff brings wage and hour claims on behalf of himself

and the putative class under the Labor Code Private Attorneys General Act of 2004

("PAGA"), Cal. Labor Code $$ 2698-2699, seeking to recover various civil

penalties. (Compl. Iln 22, 27 , 32-34, and 43)

12. Plaintiff prays for relief in the form of general damages, compensatory

damages, special damages, punitive damages, statutory and civil penalties, pre- and

J2722407v11013775
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post-judgment interest, attomeys' fees and costs of suit, and equitable relief.

(Compl. Prayer For Relief TIT 1-9)

II. DIVERSITY OF CITIZENSHIP

A. Complete Diversity of Citizenship for Q 1332(a) Jurisdiction.

13. In order to show that removal is proper under 28 U.S.C. $ 1332(a), the

diversity jurisdiction statute, Alta-Dena must establish complete diversity of

citizenship. See, e.g., Snell v, Cleveland, [nc.,316 F.3d 822,824 (9th Cir. 2002).

1. Plaintiffs Citizenship

14. Plaintiff alleges that"lalt all times mentioned herein, and at the time

the causes of action arose, Mr. Perez was an individual and citizen of the County of

Los Angeles, State of California . ." (Compl. '{ll 2) (emphasis added) Thus, for

jurisdictional purposes, Plaintiff \s a citizen of California, Cf, Mantin v. Broadcast

Music, únc.,244F.2d204,206 (91hCft.7957) (noting that allegations of citizenship

satisff the requirements of diversity jurisdiction).

2, Alta-Dena Certified Dairy. LLC's Citizenship

15. Alta-Dena Certified Dairy, LLC is a limited liability company

("LLC") organized under the laws of Delaware. (Compl. fl 1) For purposes of

diversity jurisdiction, "an LLC is a citizen of every state of which its

owners/members are citizens." Johnson v. Columbia Props. Anchorage, LP, 437

F.3d 894, 899 (9th Cir. 2006).

f6. Alta-Dena Certified Dairy, LLC has one member, Dean West II, LLC,

which is also a limited liability company. (Declaration of Marjorie Ball ("8a11

Decl.") fl 2)

17 . Dean West II, LLC has one member, Dean Dairy Holdings, LLC, also

a limited liability company. (Id.113)

18. Dean Dairy Holdings, LLC's sole member is Dean Holding Company,

a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Wisconsin, with its corporate

42722407v11013775
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headquarters located at 2711 North Haskell Avenue, Suite 3400, Dallas, Texas

7s204. (rd.1t\ 4-6)

19. Dean Holding Company is owned entirely by Dean Foods Company, a

corporation whose principal place of business is also located in Dallas, Texas. The

large majority of Dean Holding Company's officers reside and work in the Dallas,

Texas area and, when decisions are made about the business of Dean Holding

Company, they are made by those officers in Dallas, Texas. (1d.16)

20. Dean Holding Company is thus a citizen of Wisconsin and Texas for

purposes of diversity jurisdiction. Johnson, 437 F3d at 899 (noting thal "a

corporation is a citizen only of (1) the state where its principal place of business is

located, and (2) the state in which it is incorporated"); see also Hertz Corp. v.

Friend, 130 S. Ct. 1181 (2010) (holdingfhat "'principal place of business' is best

read as referring to the place where a corporation's officers direct, control, and

coordinate a corporation's activities," in other words, "the place that Courts of

Appeals have called the corporation's 'nerve center"' or "the place where the

corporation maintains its headquarters").

21. As a result, Alta-Dena Certif,red Dairy, LLC is a citizen of Wisconsin

and Texas for diversity jurisdiction purposes. Johnson, 437 F .3d at 899.

22. Because Plaintiff is a citizen of California, while Alta-Dena Certified

Dairy, LLC is a citizen of Wisconsin and Texas, Plaintiff and Alta-Dena are diverse

for purposes of diversity jurisdiction, 28 U.S.C. $ 1332(aX1).

B. Minimal Diversitv of Citizenship for S 1332(d)(2) Jurisdiction.

23. Although, as explained above, the parties to this litigation are

completely diverse in citizenship, in order to establish jurisdiction under CAFA,

Alta-Dena need only show that the parties are minimally diverse. See Coleman v.

Estes Exp. Lines, Inc., 631 F.3d 1010, I0I2 (9th Cir. 20ll). In other words, "one

plaintifPs diversity from one defendant suffices" to establish diversity for CAFA

52722407v11013775
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purposes. Exxon Mobil Corp. v. Allapattah Servs., Inc., 545 U.S. 546, 595 n.I2

(200s).

24. As discussed above, Plaintiff, a citizen of California, is unquestionably

diverse from Alta-Dena Certified Dairy, LLC, a citizen of Wisconsin and Texas.

As such, the minimal diversity requirement is satisfied.

UI. AMOUNT IN CONTROVERSY

25. The amount-in-controversy requirement is satisfied for purposes of

diversity jurisdiction as well as CAFA jurisdiction. 28 U.S.C. $$ 1332(a),

1332(d)(2). "[V/]here a plaintiffs state court complaint does not speci$, a

particular amount of damages, the removing defendant bears the burden of

establishing, by a preponderance of the evidence, that the amount in controversy

exceeds fthe jurisdictional minimum]." Sanchez v. Monumental Lift Ins. Co., 702

F.3d 398, 404 (9th Cir. 1996). "IJnder this burden, the defendant must provide

evidence establishing that it is 'more likely than not' that the amount in controversy

exceeds that amount." Id. "To establish the jurisdictional amount, [a defendant]

need not concede liability." Lewis v. Verizon Commc'ns, únc.,627 F.3d394,400

(9th Cir. 2010); Coleman, 730 F. Srrpp. 2d at 1148 (holding defendant "is not

obligated to research, state, and prove the plaintiffls claim for damages" to establish

jurisdiction).r "fC]ourts have assumed a l00o/o violation rate in calculating the

amount in controversy when the complaint does not allege a more precise

calculation." Coleman,730 F. Supp. 2d at 1148.

26. The minimum amount required for individual claims is $75,000, and

the minimum amount required for class actions under CAFA is $5 million. 28

U.S.C. $ $ 1 332(a), 1332(d)(2).

62722407v1101377 5
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A. $75.000 Amount-In-Controversv For Diversitv Jurisdiction
1. Plaintiffs Individual Wase and Hour Claims

27. In Paragraph 14 of his Complaint, Plaintiff alleges that from "at least

2005 to December 3I,2010"'.

o Alta-Dena had a "uniform policy and practice" that "did not allow

Plaintiff or any putative class member dutyfree meal period(s)."

¡ Alta-Dena's meal and rest break policy failed "to comply with meal

and rest break timing requirements," and, as a result, "Plaintiff and

other drivers often went six (6) hours if not longer without a meal

and/or rest break."

o Alta-Dena did not "inform Plaintiff or the putative class member that

there [sic.] were entitled to a second meal break if they worked over

10 and/or 12 hours in a day (which Plaintiff often did)."

28. Before filing his complaint in this case, Plaintiff submitted a

declaration in another case against Alta-Dena (and other defendants). That action,

de la Cueva v. Alta-Dena Certified Dairy LLC, No. CV 12-1804-GHK ("the de la

Cueva action"), was brought by Miguel de la Cueva and sought to assert claims

against Alta-Dena thaf were similar to the claims Plaintiff asserts here. Plaintiff

filed his declaration in support of Mr. de la Cueva's motion for class certification,

which the court denied. In his declaration, Plaintiff made the following statements

under oath regarding his employment by Alta-Dena:2

o "I generally worked a 5-8 schedule, meaning I worked five days a

week, and was scheduled for at least eight hours a day." (Hoek Decl.,

Ex.3fl2)
o Usually I worked at least 10 hours a day and often more. . . . [T]he

amount of time managers gave me to complete my route left hardly

' A tru" and correct copy of Plaintiff s declaration in the de la Cueva action is
attached as Exhibit 3 to Hôek Declaration, filed herewith.

72722407v1101371 5
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any room - if at all- to take a 3O-minute duty free meal break and two

15-minute rest breaks." (Id.)

o "I often was unable to take a 3O-minute duty free meal break, or two

15-minute rest breaks. And the times I was able to take a meal break,

it was well after the 6th hour of my shift (and qlmost always after all

my deliveries were completed- at least eight ornine hours into my 8

shift)." (Id.113)

o "[T]he way my route was assigned to me, it was qlmost impossible

take a 3O-minute meal break (and definitely not a 15 minute rest break

as well) before the 6th hour without being late." (1d.14)

a. Meal and Rest Break Premiums

29. California Labor Code S 227.6 provides that "[i]f an employer fails to

provide an employee a meal period or rest period in accordance with an applicable

order of the Industrial Welfare Commission, the employer shall pay the employee

one additional hour of pay at the employee's regular rate of compensation for each

work day that the meal or rest period is not provided." Cal. Labor Code ç 227.6.

Industrial Welfare Commission ("IWC") Order No. 9, in turn, provides "[n]o

employer shall employ any person for a work period of more than five (5) hours

without a meal period of not less than 30 minutes, except that when a work period

of not more than six (6) hours will complete the day's work the meal period may be

waived by mutual consent of the employer and the employee." IWC Order No. 9 fl

11(a), codified at 8 Cal. Code Regs. $ 11090.

30. The statute of limitations for missed meal and rest break premiums is

three years. See Murphy ,. Kenneth Cole Prods., Inc., 56 Cal. Rptr. 3d 880, 883

(2007) ("[L]abor code section 226.7 constitutes a wage or prernium pay and is

governed by a three-year statute of limitations . . . .")

31. Assuming that the statute of limitations governing Plaintiffls claims

was tolled by the filing of the de la Cueva action on February I,2012, the three-

82722407v1101317 5
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year statutory period for his meal and rest break premium claims would run from

February I, 20Og to February l, 2012.3 However, Plaintiff makes no allegations

against Alta Dena after December 3I, 2010. Thus, the statutory period on

Plaintiffls meal and rest break premium claims under Section 226.7 would run from

February 7,2009 to December 31,2010, or atotal of 95 work weeks (45 work

weeks in2009 and 50 work weeks in 2010).

32. Plaintiff also asserts a claim under California's Unfair Competition

law ("UCL"), Bus. & Prof. Code, $ 17200 et seq., and apparently intends to use that

claim to try to extend the statute of limitations on his meal and rest break premium

claims to 4 years.a In that case, the statutory period on Plaintiff s premium claims

would run from February 1,2008 to December 3I,2010, or a total of 145 work

weeks (45 work weeks in 2008 and 50 work weeks in each of 2009 and 2010).

33. Plaintiffls "regular rate of compensation" averaged approximately

824.77 per hour between February 2009 and December 2010, and approximately

825.14 per hour between February 2008 and December 2010. (Ball Decl. fl 9)

34, Plaintiff alleges that as a result of Defendant's policy of restricting

drivers during their meal periods, he never was provided a duty-free meal period.

(Compl. .1T 14) Plaintiff asserts that he "generally'' worked 5 days a week for at

least 8 hours a day and that he "often" worked 10 or more hours. (Id.; Hoek Decl.

Ex. 3 fl 2) Plaintiff alleges that he was not permitted "a second duty-free meal

period after 10 andlor 12 hours of work, if at all." (Compl. 1T21)

35. With respect to rest breaks, Plaintiff alleges that he "often" worked 6

or more hours without a rest break. (Compl. '1T 14) He alleges that "Defendant . . .

did not authorize or permit its drivers two rest periods during a work-day," that he

' Alta-Dena does not concede that Plaintifls claims were tolled. and reserves its
rights to challenge on rintiffls claims were tolled.o Á.lta-Dena doe"s not sed to extend the statute of
limitations on Plaintiff s c to challense on the merits
any arguments that the st ims is exteäded.

92722407v11013775
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"often" did not get a rest break, and that he "generally" worked at least 8 hours.

(Compl. ï la; Hoek Decl. Ex. 3 fl 2)

36, Plaintifls allegations and testimony support using a 100 percent

violation rate for determining the amount in controversy on his meal period and rest

break premium claims. See, e.g., Coleman, 730 F, Supp. 2d at Il49 (holding that

defendant met its burden by a preponderance of the evidence with a declaration

stating the number of employees and calculating damages based on a I00%

assumed violation rule supported by the complaint's allegations); Schuler v.

Morton's of Chicago, Inc., No. CV rc-06762-OD'W, 20Il WL 280993, at *5 (C.D.

Cal. Jan. 25, 2011) (finding diversity jurisdiction satisfied under legal certainty

standard based on assumed 100% violation rates for meal and rest break claims),'

Stevenson v. Dollar Tree Stores, Inc., No. CV 1 1-1433-KJM,2011 WL 4928753, aI

*4 (8.D. Cal. Oct. 17, 2011) (approving calculation based on a "more often than

not" frequency of missed meal breaks given "plaintiffls allegations that members of

the class were 'routinely' denied meal periods or not compensated for missed meal

periods, combined with his allegations regarding the defendant's 'policy and

practice"').5

37. Nonetheless, for pu{poses of this notice of removal, Alta-Dena

assumes only 3 meal period and 3 rest break violations per week, recognizing that

this far underestimates the actual amount in controversy.

38. Calculating premium pay accordingly, the amount in controversy on

Plaintiff s claim for meal and rest break premium pay claim is at least $14,329.80

to $21 ,549.90, as reflected below:

2722407v11013775 10
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Meal Periods: $25.14 x 3 violations/week x 95 work weeks : $7,16490

Rest Breaks: $25.14 x 3 violations/week x 95 work weeks : $7,164.90

Total:: $14,329.80

Premium Pa), appl)ring 4-year limitation period of UCL

Meal Periods: 524.77 x 3 violations/week x 145 work weeks :510,774.95

Rest Breaks: 524.77 x 3 violations/week x I45 work weeks : $10,774.95

Total:: $21 ,549.90

Premium Pay applyins 3-year limitation oeriod of Section 227.6

b. "Clawed Back" Wages

39. Plaintiff claims that "beginning in at least 2005 to at least December

3I,2010, Defendant instituted a practice of automatically deducting 30 minutes of

work time and, thus, 30 minutes of pay each day from each driver regardless of

whether or not the driver actually took a 30 minute duty free meal period[.]"

(Compl. '1T 15) Plaintiff asserts that "[b]y automatically deducting 30 minutes from

drivers pay regardless of whether they worked during that time or not, Defendant

failed to pay Plaintiff and the putative class members at least the current minimum

wage for those hours worked and also failed to pay for 30 minutes of overtime

compensation that was due. Indeed, Defendant failed to pay for this time at a11."

(Id. \123) Plaintiff seeks the return of the withheld wages, as well as civil penalties

under California Labor Code ç 225,5. (Id.126)

40. As with the meal and rest break premium claims, the statutory time

period for this claim is three years, although Plaintiff apparently seeks to extend

that time period by asserting a UCL claim. Once again, assuming that Plaintifls

claims were tolled by the February I,2012 fling date in the de la Cueva action, and

taking into account the fact that he alleges no claims against Alta-Dena after

December 2010, the statutory period for Plaintiff s "clawed back" wages claim

would run from February 2009 to December 2010 (95 work weeks) using a 3-year

2722407v11013775 11
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statute of limitations, and from February 2008 to December 2010 (145 work weeks)

using a 4-year statute of limitations.

41. Based on Plaintiffls allegations and testimony, the amount in

controversy on this claim may be calculated assuming a 100 percent violation rate.

Nonetheless, Alta-Dena conservatively calculates the amount in controversy on the

"clawed back" wages claim using only 3 instances per week in which 30 minutes

were deducted from Plaintiff s pay despite Plaintiff not receiving a duty-free meal

period. Thus, the amount in controversy on this claim is at least $3,582.45 to

$5,387.48, as reflected below:

42. This calculation does not even take into account Plaintiffls claim for

overtime wages, which would substantially increase the amount in controversy.

c. Inaccurate Wage Statements

43. Plaintiff also claims that, based on the alleged missed meal periods and

rest breaks and unauthorized deductions, Alta-Dena knowingly and intentionally

failed to provide Plaintiff with accurate itemized wage statements in violation of

California Labor Code ç 226. (Compl. ffi 40-44)

44. Plaintiff claims that he is entitled to civil penalties under (1) California

Labor Code $ 226(e), which provides for a $50 penalty for the first pay period in

which a violation occurs and $100 for each subsequent pay period, not to exceed

$4,000; and (2) California Labor Code ç 226.3, which he claims provides a civil

penalty of $250 per employee per initial violation and $1,000 per employee per

subsequent violation. (Compl. \11 42-43)

"Clawed Back" 'Wages applying 3-year limitation period

$25.14 x .50 x 3 violations/week x 95 work weeks : $3,582.45

"Clawed Back" 'Wages applying 4-year limitation period

$24.77 x .50 x 3 violations/week x 145 work weeks : $5,387.48

2722407v1101377 5 T2
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45. The statute of limitations for penalty claims is one year. Cal. Code

Civ. P. $ 340. Plaintiff does not allege any conduct by Alta Dena after December

2010, thus it is Defendant's position that his penalty claims are time-barred.

However, because potential defenses do not affect the amount in controversy, these

penalty claims must be considered in determining the amount in controversy. See

St. Paul Mercury Indem. Co. v. Red Cab Co.,303 US 283, 295-296 (1938) (holding

that potential defenses are not considered in determining amount in controversy);

Geographic Expeditions, Inc. v. Estate of Lhotha ex rel. Lhotka, 599 F3d 1t02,

1108 (9th Cir. 2010) (holding that contractual limitation on liability did not affect

amount in controversy); Riggins v. Riggins,4I5 F.2d 1259, 126l-1262 (9th Cir.

1969) (holding that statute of limitations defense might bar portion of relief sought

did not affect amount in controversy); Scherer v. Equitable Lífe Assur. Socíety

U.5., 347 F3d 394, 398 (2d Cir. 2003) (holding that collateral estoppel doctrine

might bar portion of relief sought did not reduce amount in controversy); William

V/. Schwarzer, A. Wallace Tashima, and James M. Wagstaffe, Rutter Group

Practice Guide: Federql Cívíl Procedure Beþre Trial, Calif, & gth Cir. Editions,

Ch.2C-8 $ 2:1797 (2013) ("Potential defenses to all or part of the claim do not

affect the amount in controversy-even if disclosed on the face of the complaint

(e.g., potential statute of limitations defense). Reason: Defendant may not raise the

defense; even if raised, the defense may be shown to be invalid.").

46. Accepting for purposes of removal Plaintiffls allegation that he never

received duty free meal periods and'ooften" did not receive rest breaks, the amount

in controversy for Plaintiffls penalty claims is at least $27,800, as reflected below:

Section 226(e) Penalties

$50 for the first pay period, plus $100 each for the subsequent 25 pay periods

during the one-year statutory period: $2,550

Section 226.3 Penalties

2722407v1/01377 5 13
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250 for the first pay period, plus $ 1 ,000 each for the subsequent 25 pay periods

during the one-year statutory period : $25,250

Total:: $27,800

Meal & Rest Break Premium Pa)¡: 514,329.80 (3 yrs) to $21,549.90 (4 yrs)

"Clawed Back" 'Wages: $3,582.45 (3 yrs) to $5,387.48 (4 yrs)

Inaccurate Wage Statement Penalties: $27,800

Total: : s45,712.25 (3 yrs) to $54,737.38 (4 yrs)

47. Therefore, Plaintiff s individual wage and hour claims involve an

alleged total amount in controversy of at least 545,712.25 to 554,737.38, as

reflected below:

2. PAGA Wage and Hour Claims.

48. In addition to his individual claims, Plaintiff purports to bring wage

and hour claims under the Labor Code Private Attorneys General Act of 2004

("PAGA"), Cal. Labor Code $$ 2698-2699. (Compl. lTfT 22,27,32,and43)

49. "LJnder PAGA, a plaintiff brings a representative action as an

'aggrieved employee,' on behalf of himself and other current or former employees,

and seeks civil penalties for Labor Code violations by employers, with 75 percent

going to the LWDA [California's Labor and Workforce Development Agency] and

the remaining 25 percent to the aggrieved employees." Id. (citing Cal. Labor Code

$ 2699(a), (i)). Urbino v. Orkin Servs. of Cal., [nc,,882 F. Supp. 2d 1152, lI58
(C.D. CaL.2011). A plaintiff asserting a PAGA claim is thus "essentially bringing a

law enforcement action designed to protect the public and not to benefit private

parties." Ariqs v. Super, CL,95 Cal. Rptr. 3d 588, 600 (2009) (internal quotation

marks and citation omitted).

50. When several plaintifß unite to enforce a single title or right, in which

they have a common and undivided interest, "it is enough if their interests

collectively equal the jurisdictional amount." Troy Bank of Troy, Ind. v, G.A.

2722407vt1013775 T4
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Whitehead & Co,,222 U.S. 39, 40 (1911). The Ninth Circuit has held that where

the claims of a group of plaintiffs "derivef] from rights that [the plaintifß] hold in

group status, then the claims are common and undivided. If not, the claims are

separate and distinct." Eagle v. Am. TeL & Tel. Co.,769 F.2d 541,546 (9th Cir.

1e8s).

51. In Urbino, a Central District of California court held "that the amount

in controversy in a PAGA claim is predicated on the total amount of civil penalties

sought by the aggrieved employees." 882 F. Supp. 2d at 1164. The court explained

that the amount in controversy should include aggregated PAGA claims because:

while an aggrieved employee may separately litigate a PAGA claim if
the LWDA declines to do So, a PAGA action is essentially a

representative action brought by a group of aggrieved employees on
behalf of the State. atl not
the private individuals involved. As noted in Arias v. Superíor Court,
'any direct financial benefit to those harmed by the employer's
unlawful conduct is ancillary to the primary object' of a PAGA
claim-namely, to further the reach of the LV/DA and protect the
public's interest. Furthermore, the PAGA statute does not enable a
single agprieved employee to litígate his or her own claims. but
requires an aggrieved employee 'on behalf of herself or himself qnd
other current or former employees' to enforce violations of the Labor
Code by their employers. The statute also awards civil penalties to
the agsrieved employees as a whole. The statute therefore
contemplates a common group action with civil penalties being
awarded to the entire group.

Id. at 1 161 (intemal citations omitted) (emphasis added).

52. The court's decision in Urbino echoed another recent decision by the

Eastern District of California holding that the amount in controversy on a PAGA

claim should be aggregated for purposes of diversity jurisdiction. See Thomas v.

Aetna Heqlth of Cal.,1nc,, No. l0-cv-01906-A\MI-SKO, 20ll WL 2173715, af *19

(E.D. Cal. June 2,2011) ("In sum, a PAGA claim is common and undivided

because the right to pursue the action derives solely from the LWDA's interest in

enforcement of the Labor Code. Aggrieved employees have no right to seek any

2722407vr/013775 15
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individual recovery under PAGA and are precluded from bringing repeated PAGA

suits. As a result, aggrieved employees have no separate and individual rights to

pursue under PAGA that would transform it from a law enforcement action that

furthers the interests of the LWDA into a myriad of separate and distinct claims of

the aggrieved employees.").

53. Plaintiffls PAGA claims, therefore, derive from a "common and

undivided interest," and must be aggregated in order to determine whether the

amount-in-controversy exceeds $75,000.

54. Plaintiffs Complaint claims "at least 99" aggrieved employees on

whose behalf he brings his PAGA claims. (Compl. T 10) In fact, Alta-Dena

continuously employed approximately 105 drivers during the applicable period.

(Ball Decl. l|'í1T 11-12) Plaintiff seeks to recover at least three different statutory

penalties pursuant to PAGA on behalf of these allegedly aggrieved employees.6

The statute of limitations for these claims is one year. Thus it is Defendant's

position that the claims are time-barred, but since Plaintiff has put the claims at

issue by alleging them in his Complaint, they must be considered for purposes of

establishing the amount in controversy.

55. First, Plaintiff seeks recovery of penalties that the LWDA could

collect pursuant to Labor Code $ 210(a). (Compl. n 3Ð Labor Code $ 210(a),

provides that "[i]n addition to, and entirely independent and aparl from, any other

penalty provided in this article, every person who fails to pay the wages of each

employee as provided in Sectionll . . , 204. . . shall be subject to a civil penalty"

amounting to (1) "one hundred dollars ($100) for each failure to pay each

employee," and (2) "lf]or each subsequent violation, or any willful or intentional

2722407v1101317 5 16
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violation, two hundred dollars ($200) for each failure to pay each employee, plus 25

percent of the amount unlawfully withheld." Cal. Labor Code $ 210(a)(1)-(a)(2).

Section 204, in tum, provides that "[a]ll wages . . eamed by any person in any

employment are due and payable twice during each calendar month, on days

designated in advance by the employer as the regular paydays." Cal. Labor Code $

20a@).

56. Plaintiff alleges that "[b]y failing to pay premium pay for meal andlor

rest breaks that were not provided, Defendant failed to pay all wages earned within

10 or 11 days following the semi-monthly pay period in which work was

performed" and thus "willfully has violated California Labor Code ç 204."

(Compl. T 30) Plaintiff alleges that he and other members of the class were never

provided a duty free meal period and "often" were not provided any meal period at

all as a result of Alta-Dena's policies and practices.

57. Second, Plaintiff seeks recovery of penalties that the LWDA could

collect pursuant to Labor Code ç 226.3 (Compl. ll 43), which provides that "[a]n

employer who violates subdivision (a) of Section 226 shall be subject to a civil

penalty in the amount of two hundred fifty dollars ($250) per employee per

violation in an initial citation and one thousand dollars ($1,000) per employee for

each violation in a subsequent citation, for which the employer fails to provide the

employee a wage deduction statement or fails to keep the records required in

subdivision (a) of Section 226." Cal. Labor Code ç 226.3. Such penalties "are in

addition to any other penalty provided by law." Id. Subdivision (a) of Section 226,

in turn, requires that employers provide accurate itemized wage statements. Cal.

Labor Code $ 226(a).

58. Third, Plaintiff seeks to recover statutory penalties under PAGA's

separate penalty provision, Cal. Labor Code ç 2699(Ð, for alleged violations of

California's meal break laws. (Compl. 1l 22) Labor Code ç 2699(Ð states that

"ltlor all provisions of this code except those for which a civil penalty is

2722407v11013775 T7
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specifically provided, there is established a civil penalty for a violation of these

provisions," amounting to "one hundred dollars ($100) for each aggrieved

employee per pay period for the initial violation and two hundred dollars ($200) for

each aggrieved employee per pay period for each subsequent violation." A plaintiff

alleging a PAGA claim for missed meal periods in violation of Labor Code ç 226.7

may thus collect penalties pursuant to Labor Code $ 2699(Ð. Murphy v. Kenneth

Cole Prods., Inc.,40 Cal{th 1094, 1111 (2007) (holding "the Court of Appeal

erred in construing section226.7 as a penalty" because "the 'additional hour of pay'

flanguage] is a premium wage intended to compensate employees, not a penalty").

59. Calculating these statutory penalties based on each of the 105 alleged

putative class members having at least one missed meal period per pay period, the

amount in controversy on these claims is at least 53,722,250, as reflected below:

3. Attorneys'Fees.

60. Plaintiff seeks an award of attomeys' fees for his wage-and-hour

claims. Such statutory attorneys' fees are properly included in the amount-in-

controversy for jurisdictional purposes. Galt G/S v. -r,S,S Scandinavia, 142 F3d

1150, 1155-56 (9th Cir. 1998)). In Simmons v. PCR Tech., the Court held that

($100 for the first violation + $200 each for 25 subsequent violations) x 105 drivers

: $535,500

Section 226.3 PAGA Penalties

($250 for the first violation * $1,000 each for the 25 subsequent violations) x 105

drivers :92,651,250

Section 26996 PAGA Penalties

(S100 for the f,rrst violation * $200 each for 25 subsequent violations) x 105 drivers

: $535,500

Total: 53,722,250

Section 2I0h\ PAGA Penalties

2722407v11013775 18
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"[w]hile attorneys' fees alone would not necessarily exceed $75,000, when viewed

in combination with alleged compensatory, punitive, and emotional distress

damages, the jurisdictional minimum is clearly satisfied." 209 F. Supp. 2d

1029,1 03 5 (N.D. Cal. 2002).

61. The benchmark for attomeys' fees in the Ninth Circuit is 25Yo of the

recovery. See Hanlon v. Chrysler Corp., 150 F.3d 1011, 1029 (9th Cir. 1998)

("This circuit has established 25Yo of the common fund as a benchmark award for

attorney's fees.").

62. The total amount in controversy on Plaintiffls individual and PAGA

penalty claims is at least approximately $3,767,962.25 to 53,776,987.38, thus the

amount of attorneys' fees could be at least $941 ,990.56 to $944,246.85 (25% x total

amount in controversy).

4. Total Amount-In-Controve rsv for Diversitv Jurisdiction

63. Plaintiff s potential damages on his individual and PAGA claims, both

of which can form the amount-in-controversy, are at least 5317671962.25 to

$31776,987.38, far exceeding the $75,000 threshold set forth at 28 U.S.C. $

I332(a), even without including the claim for attorneys' fees. The attorneys' fees

bring the amount-in-controversy to $4,709 1952.81 to $417211234.23, as reflected

below:

2722407v l/013775 t9
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514,329.80 (3 yrs) to $21 ,549.90 (4 yrs)

$3,582.45 (3 yrs) to $5,387.48 (4 yrs)

Inaccurate Wage Statement Penalties: $27,800

PAGA Penalties: $3,722,250

Subtotal: 53,767,962.25

Attorneys'Fees: $94I,990.56

TOTAL: $4,709,952.81

Meal & Rest Break Premium Pay:

"Clawed Back" 'Wages:

to

to

to

$3,776,987.38

s944,246.85

s4r721,234.23

64. Moreover, these calculations do not even include Plaintiffls claims for

failure to pay overtime, failure to pay minimum wages, or waiting time penalties,

and also do not assume a 700Yo violation rate (although that assumption would be

supported by Plaintifß' pleadings and testimonyf-which would further increase

the amount-in-controversy. Therefore, it is obvious that Alta-Dena has met its

burden of establishing by u preponderance of the evidence that the amount in

controversy exceeds $75,000.

B. $5,000,000Amount-In-ControversyForCAFAJurisdiction

65. Because jurisdiction exists based on diversity, there is no need to

establish jurisdiction under CAFA. Nonethless, Alta-Dena demonstrates that the

amount-in-controversy requirement of CAFA also is met here.

66. The damages outlined above, standing alone, come close to satis$ring

the $5,000,000 amount-in-controversy threshold under CAFA. When combined

with other alleged damages, the 55 million threshold is easily satisfied.

67. First, Plaintiff claims that he never was provided a duty free meal

period and was "often" deprived of meal and rest periods without being paid one

hour of premium wages, and that his claims are typical for those of all putative

class members. (Compl. '1T14) The statute of limitations on such claims is three

2722407v11013775 20
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years. Murphy, 40 Cal 4th at I 1 10-1 1. However, as noted above, Plaintiff seeks to

extend the limitations period to four years by asserting UCL claims.

68. Once again, assuming that Plaintiffls claims were tolled by the

February 2012 filing date in de la Cueva and given that Plaintiff alleges no claims

against Alta-Dena after December 2010, the statutory period for these claims would

run from February 2009 to December 2010 (95 work weeks) using a3-year statute

of limitations, or from February 2008 to December 2010 (145 work weeks) using a

 -year statute of limitations.

69. Between February 7, 2009 and December 3 1 , 2010, Alta-Dena

continuously employed approximately 105 drivers. (Ball Decl, Íl 12) Their average

hourly rate of pay was approximately 524.48 per hour. (1d.)

70. Between February 1, 2008 and December 31, 2010, Alta-Dena

continuously employed approximately 105 drivers. (Id. ll 11.) Their average

hourly rate of pay was approximately 524.48 per hour. (Id.)

71. Plaintiff alleges that putative class members were never allowed duty-

free meal periods as a result of Alta-Dena's policies. (Compl. fl 14: "Thus,

Defendant did not allow Plaintiff or any putative class member duty free meal

period(s) as required by the California Labor Code and the applicable Industrial

Welfare Commission Wage Orders.") Plaintiff alleges that he and other drivers

worked ten or more hours a day, thus entitling them to a second-duty free meal

period. (Id.) Plaintiff also alleges that he and other drivers "often" were not

provided earned first or second rest breaks. (Id.) Again, his allegations and

testimony support using a 100 percent violation rate.

72. Calculating class-wide premium pay based on just 3 meal period and 3

rest break violations per driver per week-and recognizing that the amount in

controversy could be at least two or three times as much based on Plaintiffs

2122401v1101377 5 2T
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524/8 x 6 violations/week x 95 work weeks x 105 employees: $1,465,128

Premium Pav applyins 4-year limitation period of UCL

524.48 x 6 violations/week x 145 work weeks x 105 employees:$2,236,248

Premium Pav aoolvins 3-vear limitation nerl od of Section 227.6

allegations-this claim alone adds at least another 5I,465,128 to 52,236,248 to the

amount-in-controversy for CAFA s"s:t

73. Second, Plaintiff claims that as a result of the alleged missed meal

periods, putative class members did not receive accurate itemized wage statements.

In addition to the "heavy penalties" under PAGA, Plaintiff seeks to recover

penalties pursuant to Labor Code $ 226(e) on behalf of all putative class members.

Cal. Labor Code $ 226(e) ("[A]n employee suffering injury as a result of a knowing

and intentional failure by an employer to comply with subdivision (a) is entitled to

recover the greater of all actual damages or fifty dollars ($50) for the initial pay

period in which a violation occurs and one hundred dollars ($100) per employee for

each violation in a subsequent pay period, not exceeding an aggregate penalty of

four thousand dollars ($4,000) . . . .").

74. The statute of limitations for these penalty claims is one yeat. Once

again, even assuming Plaintiff may seek the benefit of the February l, 2012 filing

date in the de la Cueva action, it is Defendant's position that these penalty claims

are time-barred. Since potential defenses cannot be considered at this procedural

posture, these penalty claims must be included for purposes of assessing the amount

in controversy.

75. Calculating these alleged penalties based on 105 purported class

members receiving inaccurate wage statements for each pay period during the one-

year limitations period because they missed at least one meal period per pay period,

' 5"" Helm v. Alderwoods Grp,, No. C 08-01184 SI, 2008 WL 2002511, at *4 n.3
(N.D. Cal. May 7, 2008) (acceóting calculations for.CAFA amount-in-controversy
based on averaþe hourly'wàge s'of n'on- exempt em ployees).

2722407v11013775 22
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Section 226(e) Penalties

($50 for the first pay period + $100 each for the subsequent 25 pay periods) x 105

employees:$267,750

Perez "Clawed Back"'Wages: $3,582.45 (3 yrs) to $5,387.48 (4 yrs)

Perez Inaccurate Wage Statement Penalties: $27,800

PAGA Penalties: $3,722,250

Class Meal & Rest Break Premium Pay: $1 ,465,I28 (3 yrs) to 52,236,248 (4 yrs)

Class Section 226(e) Penalty Claims: 5267,750

subtotal: s5,500,840.25 to $6,280,985.38

Attorneys'Fees: $1,375,210.06 to $I,570,246.35

TOTAL: $6,876,050.31 to 57,851,231.73

$14,329.80 (3 yrs) to21,549.90 (4 yrs)Meal & Premium Pa

this alleged claim could add at least another 5267,750 to the amount-in-

controversy:

76. Therefore, the amount in controversy increases by at least an

additional 51,732,878 to $2,503,998 when the claims of class members are

aggregaled for purposes of establishing CAFA jurisdiction.

77. Combining Plaintiffs' individual claims, PAGA claims, and class

claims, along with attorney's fees, demonstrates that the amount-in-controversy is

at least $6,876,050.31 to $7,8511231,72, thus exceeding $5,000,000 for CAFA

purposes:

IV. SUMMARYOF'JURISDICTIONALFACTS

78. This Court has jurisdiction both under the diversity jurisdiction statute

as well as under CAFA. 28 U.S.C. $$ 1332(a),1332(d)(2).

79. The Court has diversity jurisdiction because the amount-in-controversy

on Plaintiffls individual claims (or PlaintifPs individual and PAGA claims) exceeds

$75,000 and the parties are completely diverse.

2722407v1101377 5 23
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Dated: June 17,2013

2722407v11013775 24

80. The Court has CAFA jurisdiction because the aggregate amount-in-

controversy for all claims exceeds $5,000,000 and the parties are minimally

diverse.

WFIEREFORE, Defendant Alta-Dena Certified Dairy, LLC respectfully

requests that the above-titled action be removed from the Superior Court of the

State of California for the County of Los Angeles to this District Court.

MARC M. SELTZER
KATHRYN P. HOEK
STEVEN G. SKLAVER
AMANDA BONN
SUSMAN GODFREY L.L.P.

By
Ka P.
Attorneys þr Defendant
Altq-Dena Certified Dairy, LLC
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I, the undersigned, declare:

I am employed in the Countv of L a. I am over
the aqe of 1 8 ahd hot a partv to the withi is 1901
Aven"ue of the Stars, Suìte 950, Los Ang

On June 17,2013, I served the foregoing document(s) described as follows:

ALTA.DENA CERTIF'IED DAIRY, LLC'S NOTICE OF
REMOVAL OF CIVI ACTION UNDF'B 2!__U.q:C. $$ 1332(a),

1332(dX2), t44t(a) (DIVERSITY AND CAFA)
on the interested parties in this action by placing true copies thereof enclosed in
sealed envelopes addressed as stated on the attached service list, as follows:

PROOF OF'SERVICE

for e-mail ing and served
oreoared in
by èlectronic mail

BY PERSONAL SERVICE: I caused to be delivered such envelope by hand

-to 
the offices of the addressee.

BY FEDERAL EXPRESS OR OVERNIGHT COURIER

BY TELECOPIER

: I caused said documents to be
)

servlce list.

Executed on June 17,2013, at Los Angeles, California

XX lFederal)

-òr 
this Co

I declare that I am
urt at whose directi

ce a member of the bar
made

M.F. Williams r)

(Type or Print Name)

2722407v11013775 25

Case 2:13-cv-04335-R-FFM   Document 1   Filed 06/17/13   Page 26 of 30   Page ID #:36



1

2

J

4

5

6

7

I
9

10

1l

T2

13

I4

15

I6

t7

18

19

20

2l

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

SERVICE LIST

Attornevs for Pløintiff Juøn Perez

Timotþ B. McCaffrey, Jr.

Natasha Chesler
THE LAW OFFICES OF TIMOTHY B. MCCAFFREY, JR.
A Professional Corporation
11377'West Olympic Boulevard, Suite 500
Los Angeles, California 9006 4-1683
Telephone: (3 1 0)882-6407
Facsimile: (3 10)882 -6359
Email : tmccaffrey@tbmlaw,net
Email : nchesler@tbmlaw.net
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
CIVIL COVER SHEET

Vlll(a). IDENTICAL CASES: Has this action been previously filed in this court and dismissed, remanded or closed? I NO n YES

lf yes, list case number(s):

Vlll(b). RELATED CASES: Have any cases been previously filed in this court that are related to the present case? n NO I YES

. 
lfyes, listcasenumbe(s): (1)lkeda,No.CV12-03034R(FFMx); (2) delaCueva,No,CVl2-01804GHK(CWx); (3) Parker,No,CVt3-02621 BRO(VBKx)

€ivil cases are deemed related if a previously filed case and the present casel

(Check all boxes that apply) [ A, Arise from the same or closely related transaçtions, happenings, or events; or

E B. Call for determination of the same or substantially related or similar questions of law and fact; or

I C. Forotherreasonswouldentailsubstantialduplicationoflaborifheardbydifferentjudges;or

I D. lnvolve the same patent, trademark or copyright, and one ofthe factors identified above in a, b or c also is present.

lX. VENUE: (When completing the following lnformation, use an additional sheet lf necessary.)

(a) List the County in this District; California County outside of th¡s District; State if other than California; or Foreign Country, in which EACH named

plaintiff resides.

I Check here if the government, its agencies or employees is a named plaintiff. lf this box is checked, go to item (b).

County in thls Dlstrict:+
California County outside of this District; state, if other than California; or Foreign
Côlrntru

Los Angeles'

(b) List the County in this District; California County outside of this District; State if other than California; or Foreign Country, in which EACH named

defendant resides.

Check here if the government, its agencies or employees is a named defendant, lf this box is checked, go to item (c)'

County in this Dlstrlct:*
California County outside of this District; state, if other than California; or Foreign
Côunfru

Texas, Wisconsln

(c) L¡itheCountyinthisDistrict;CaliforniaCountyoutsideofthisDistrict;StateifotherthanCalifornia;orForeignCountry,inwhichEACHclaimarose'
NOTE: ln land coñdemnation cases, use the location of the tract of land involved.

County in this Distr¡ct:*
California County outside of this District; State, if other than California; or Foreign
Côuntrv

Los Angeles

iLos Orange, San llo¡ ra, Santa or San
use the

X. SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY (OR SELF-REPRESENTED LITIGANTIT DATE:

nd service
Local Rule

of pleadings or
3-1 is not filed

861 HIA

DIWC

DIWW

SSlD

RSI

instructions sheèt).

Cases:

Substantive Statement of Cause of Actlon
All claims for health insurance benefits (Medicare) under Title 18, Part A, of the Social Security Act, as amended. Also,

include claims by hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, etc., for certifìcation as providers of services under the program,
(42 U,S.C. le3sFF(b))

All claims for "Black Lu ng" beneflts u nder Title 4, Pa rt B, of the Federa I Coa I Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969, (30 U,S,C. 
)

923)

All claims filed by insured workers for disability insurance benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as amended; plus

all claims filed foi child's insurance benefits básed on disability, (42 U'S.C,405 (g))

All claims fìled for widows or widowers insurance benefits based on disability under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as

amended, (42 U.S,C,405 (g))

All claims for supplemental security income payments based upon disabillty filed underTitle 16 of the Social Security Act, as

amended,

All claims for retirement (old age) and survivors benefits under Title 2 of the Soclal Security Act, as amended.

BL

cv-71 (02113)

(a2 U,S,C, aos (g))
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